FILED
Court of Appeals
Division I
State of Washington
8/31/2022 3:36 PM

FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON 4 9/1/2022
BY ERIN L. LENNON
CLERK

101233-1

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION ONE

Appeal No. 821491

STATE OF WASHINGTON,
Respondent,
vs
AARON MICHEAL LANCASTER,
Appellant.

PETITION TO REVIEW DECISION OF COURT OF APPEALS FOR DIVISION ONE

William Johnston, WSBA 6113 Attorney for Appellant 401 Central Avenue Bellingham, Washington 98225 Phone: 360 676-1931

Fax: 360 676-1510

Email: wjtj47@gmail.com

A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Aaron Lancaster asks this Court to accept review of the Court of Appeals decision terminating review designated in part B of this petition.

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

A copy of the decision is in the appendix at pages 1-9.

C. ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Whether the failure to disclose the results of a blood test until five (5) days before trial (disclosed the Wednesday before the following Monday trial) and the filing of a list of witnesses seven days before trial (the Monday before the trial on the following Monday) listing 11 witnesses, which was not received by defense counsel until the Friday before the Monday trial date constitutes mismanagement under State v. Dailey 93 Wn2d 454 (1980) entitling defendant to a dismissal of charges.

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND PROCEDURE

Petitioner accepts as accurate the statement of the facts made by the Court of Appeals with one significant addition. It is true that the state filed this list of witnesses on Monday, September 21 before the Monday, September 28 trial date but defense counsel did not receive a copy of the list of witnesses until Friday before the Monday trial.

E. ARGUMENT

Petitioner bases his argument by his contention that the precedent of State v. Dailey 93 Wn2d 454 (198®) controls disposition of this case. The facts of disclosure of witnesses in this case are the equivalent to those in Dailey. Daily was a vehicle homicide case, a more serious case, and in Dailey, the prosecutor filed and served a list of witnesses naming 5 witnesses upon defense attorney almost three months before trial. The state filed an amended witness list adding eleven (11) new witnesses on the Friday before the Monday trial date. Like Dailey's attorney, Lancaster's defense counsel became aware of the state list of witnesses on the Friday before the Monday trial. Another similarity between Dailey and Lancaster's circumstance is that the blood test results in Dailey were received 8 days before trial as compared to 5 days before trial in the instant case.

In Lancaster, defense counsel became aware of the witnesses on the Friday before the Monday trial. There was no time left to attempt to interview each witness. A careful review of the Dailey case shows that the Superior Court dismissed the vehicle homicide charge based upon mismanagement. The case was appealed by the prosecutor to the Court of Appeals which reversed the dismissal, State v. Dailey 23 Wash. App. 233 (1979) and in so doing adopted the same rationale as the Court of Appeals and Superior Court did in the instant case in excusing the late filing of the witness list. The Court of Appeals in Dailey reversed the Superior Court order of dismissal for mismanagement because the prosecutor disclosed 11 new witnesses on the Friday before the Monday trial and stated in its opinion;

The morning trial, defense counsel again moved to dismiss for failure of due process, emphasizing the late witness list. Upon request for an explanation by the trial court, the state noted that virtually all the witnesses not named in the information were identifies in the police reports and known to the defense, the exception being one expert witness. The trial court responded "Well I think the states conduct is reprehensible here, and has been all the way through but I won't change my ruling (denying dismissal); 23 Wash. App. at 236.

The rationale of the Superior Court in this case and the Court of Appeals in Dailey, whose opinion was reversed by the state Supreme Court, was that the defense counsel had adequate notice because the names and addresses of the witnesses to be called were contained somewhere in the police reports.

Petitioner argues that the Superior Court abused its discretion and the Court of Appeals erred by not following the holding in Dailey which is that it is not sufficient if the list of witnesses is filed the Friday before the Monday trial date because the names of the witnesses are contained in police reports.

This court should be advised that there is another Whatcom County Superior Court criminal appeal which is very similar to the facts of the Lancaster case. That case is State of Washington v. Mora Lopez, Court of Appeals Cause No. 83054-6-I, Whatcom County Superior Court Cause No. 21-1-00360-37. In the Mora Lopez case, the Superior Court ordered the prosecutor to file its list of witnesses by June 3, 2021. Trial was scheduled to start on June 28, 2021. The prosecutor filed its witness list on June 21. Superior Court Judge Evan Jones found mismanagement and dismissed the criminal prosecution. Attached in the Appendix is a copy of the Findings entered by Superior Court Judge Evan Jones dismissing the Mora-Lopez prosecution. The state appealed that dismissal and the case is pending before the Court of Appeals.

Petitioner suspects that the argument made in Mora-Lopez but rejected by Superior Court Judge Evan Jones was that adequate notice of witnesses was provided by delivery of the police reports.

Petitioner relies on the argument that Daily controls disposition of this case and he is entitled to an order reversing the Superior Court and the Court of Appeals and dismissing the case. However, petitioner Lancaster requests that this court stay consideration of his petition for review until the Washington Court of Appeals renders an opinion in the Mora Lopez case. If the Court of Appeals affirms Judge Evan Jones' dismissal in Mora- Lopez, petitioner expects the prosecutors' office would petition for review to this court.

It is relevant in petitioner counsel's view that the Mora Lopez case has a similarity to this case in that the prosecutor is the same. Benjamin Pratt was the trial attorney in Lancaster as well as Mora-Lopez.

Granting review in this case and reversing the Court of Appeals would have a salutary affect upon criminal judicial process in Whatcom County because it would put pressure on a prosecutor's office to be more diligent in the timely providing of discovery. Affirming the decision in this case would enable and endorse the dilatory discovery actions of Whatcom County Prosecutor's Office, specifically deputy prosecutor Benjamin Pratt.

F. CONCLUSION

While the decision to dismiss or not for mismanagement is a discretionary one, this case and its companion case, State v. Mora-Lopez, involve two very similar Whatcom County cases involving last minute

filing of witness lists. Whatcom County Superior Court Judge Freeman used his discretion and allowed the state to proceed to trial in Lancaster. Whatcom County Superior Court Evan Jones evaluating similar facts in Mora Lopez and exercised his discretion and dismissed the criminal prosecution.