A. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT 
 

Respondent, State of Washington, by Kimberly A. 

Thulin, Appellate Deputy Prosecutor for Whatcom County, 

seeks the relief designated in Part B.   

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 
 

Petitioner Lancaster has asked this Court to review the 

Court of Appeals opinion upholding his conviction for 

attempting to elude, driving while under the influence (DUI), 

resisting arrest, and hit and run unattended. The decision was 

cited as an attachment to the Petition for Review, but no 

Appendix was filed with the Petition. As such, the decision is 

attached to this Answer at Appendix A. 

The State requests this Court deny review.  

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. Whether Lancaster sufficiently demonstrates 
further discretionary review is warranted when his 
Petition for Review fails to articulate the required 
basis pursuant to RAP 13.4 demonstrating review 
is necessary, and inappropriately relies on matters 
outside the record to make his argument.  
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D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 
 

The State relies on the Court of Appeals statement of the 

facts for the purposes of answering Lancaster’s petition for 

review. See Court of Appeals Unpublished Opinion dated 

08/01/2022 (hereinafter “Opinion”) at 1-4. 

E. ARGUMENT 
 

1. The Petitioner has failed to meet the criteria set forth 
in RAP 13.4 (b)(1)-(4) to demonstrate further 
discretionary review is warranted.   

 
A Petition for Review will be accepted by the Supreme 

Court only:  

(1)  If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with 
a decision of the Supreme Court; or 

(2)  If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with 
a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or 

(3)  If a significant question of law under the Constitution of 
the State of Washington or of the United States is 
involved; or 

(4)  If the petition involves an issue of substantial public 
interest that should be determined by the 
Supreme Court. 
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RAP 13.4.  Lancaster makes no argument to establish 

that his case meets these criteria. Instead, he attempts to re-

litigate the issues raised and considered in the Court of Appeals. 

Additionally, counsel inappropriately references facts outside 

the record to support the arguments in his Petition for Review. 

See, PFR at 4. Counsel’s references to matters outside the 

record on direct review should not be considered by this Court 

and should be stricken for purposes of evaluating whether 

Lancaster’s Petition for Review should be granted or denied.  

State v. McFarland, 127 Wn.2d 322, 899 P.2d 1251 (1995).  

The State respectfully asserts that Lancaster’s failure to 

articulate the basis for this Court to consider his Petition for 

Review based on the record on direct review, requires this 

Court to deny review in this case. 
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F. CONCLUSION  
 

For the reasons set forth above, Respondent, State of 

Washington, respectfully requests this Court deny Lancaster’s 

Petition for Review.   

 

This document contains 458 words, excluding parts of the 
document exempted from the word count by RAP 18.17.